

Venice Neighborhood Council

PO Box 550, Venice, CA 90294 / www.VeniceNC.org Email: <u>info@VeniceNC.org</u> Phone: 310-421-8627



VNC Neighborhood Committee Meeting Minutes

 Meeting Date: August 27, 2015
 Meeting Time: 7:30PM to 9:00PM

 Meeting Location: The Terrace Café, 7 Washington Blvd. Marina del Rey CA 90292

 Contact: Marc.Saltzberg@VeniceNC.org
 see: VeniceNC.org/neighborhood-committee

- 1. 7:30AM Welcome and Introductions see <u>VeniceNC.org/neighborhood-committee</u> to see neighborhoods
- 2. 7:31 Call to Order & Roll Call

Adam Glick	Arrv 7:55	John Montgomery	Present
Bill Boyd		John Weston	Present
Carmen Navarro		Lydia Pelosi (on leave)	
Carolyn Rios		Marc Saltzberg (Chair)	Present
Daniel Pinedo		Marianna Aguilar	Lve 8:30
DeDe Audette	Present	Mark Kanights	Present
Jay Cole	Present	Michael Nelson	
Jerry Jaffe	Present	Mike Newhouse (ex officio)	
Joan Wrede	Present	Nicholas Hippisley-Coxe	Lve 8:40
Joe Verrone	Present	Sarah Shoup	Present
Guests: JoAnne McCauliff		Judy Goldman	
Darryl Dufee		Lisa Little	

- 3. 7:33 Approve Agenda Motion: NHC/MK 11-0-1
- 4. 7:35 ANNOUNCEMENTS Information about specific events important to Venice
- 5. 7:40 PUBLIC COMMENT non-agendized items related to Neighborhood Committee only.
- 6. 7:45 Approve minutes from previous meetings <u>07/23/2015</u> Motion: MN/MK 11-0-1
- 7. 8:15 Report on Last VNC Board Meeting
- 8. 8:17 Old Business:

a. b.	Updates from Chuy – Postponed to September Meeting Discussion and possible action regarding City Council Motion <u>14-1635-S2</u> , which would allow a short term rental host to rent all or part of their primary residence to short-term visitors, permitting someone to rent a spare room, a back house, or even their own home while they are out of town. See discussions from previous meetings: <u>4/23/15</u> , <u>6/25/15</u> , also LAANE's <u>Air B&B</u> <u>Report</u> , <u>Neighborhood Committee's report from 2013</u> Motion (see Below) MK/SS 10/0/1	10 min	Marc Saltzberg
8:4	5 – New Business:		
	Priorities for Small Street Repairs see: <u>www.venicenc.org/help-prioritize-small-</u> <u>street-repairs/</u> Postponed	15 min	Marc Saltzberg
b. C.	Neighborhood Reports Postponed Next Regular Meeting – September 24, 2015 at 7:30PM	1 min	Marc Saltzberg
			-

10. 9:00 – Adjourn

9.

MOTION

This Motion/CIS was debated separately by the VNC's Land Use and Planning Committee (on 8/24/15 – passed by a vote of 99-99) and Neighborhood Committee (8/27/15 - passed by a vote of 11-0). The versions passed differed. Below is the version passed by the Neighborhood Committee. The Chairs of the committees will meet to reconcile the two version and present a single draft to the VNC Board for consideration.

CIS in support of Council File 14-1635-S2 with amendments

The Venice Neighborhood Council thanks Council members Bonin, Koretz and Wesson for their short-term rentals motion (<u>Council File: 14-1635-S2</u>) and for taking this important step toward reining in the proliferation of commercial short-term rentals that have impacted the affordable housing stock in Venice and the quality of life in our neighborhoods. We appreciate the goal of differentiating sharing of a primary residence from commercial exploitation and the Council's responsiveness to our prior motions regarding this issue.

Whereas: Venice is the City's most severely impacted neighborhood in Los Angeles, with 1,118 non-owner-occupied short-term rentals (STRs), while approximately 822 more, non-duplicate, entire apartments or homes are listed on the other 22 on-line platforms serving Venice, and we are losing affordable and Rent Stabilized housing to STRs at an alarming rate¹, and

Whereas: STRs are impacting the Quality of Life in neighborhoods throughout Los Angeles and urgently needs City enforcement and regulation, and

Whereas, City Council Motion 14-1635-S2 states:

- Authorizes a host to rent all or part of their primary residence to short-term visitors, permitting someone to rent a spare room, a back house, or even their own home while they are out of town.
- Prohibits hosts from renting units or buildings that are not their primary residence or are units covered by the Rent Stabilization Ordinance (RSO), forbidding speculators from creating a syndicate of shortterm rental properties, and prohibiting the loss of valuable rental housing stock.

Therefore, be it Resolved, the Venice Neighborhood Council supports the concept of owner occupied home sharing and asks that Motion 14-1635-S2 be modified to say:

Authorizes a host to rent all or part of their primary residence to short-term visitors, permitting someone to rent a spare room or a back house so long as the owner also occupies the house.

We urge Council members Bonin, Koretz, Wesson and the entire City Council to take additional assertive actions to protect our endangered affordable housing and RSO housing stock, and to protect home sharing from speculators and profiteers who are undermining its success. We ask that the City immediately begin enforcing current zoning and occupancy laws that outlaw short-term rentals for fewer than 30 days in residential neighborhoods

The Venice Neighborhood Council further suggests that while motion 14-1635-S2 is a positive step forward, it is incomplete as written because it does not include suggestions to enhance regulation and enforcement of STRs. We suggest the following list of recommendations (see below and <u>attached report "Suggestions from the Venice</u> <u>Neighborhood Council on Regulating Short Term Rentals</u>"</u>) be reviewed for inclusion in any final ordinance. We further suggest that this list be expanded through a series of regional meetings to be held throughout the City to gather additional input.

Any new ordinance regulating Short Term Rentals should include the following (see details in attached report):

- 1. Must Be Primary Residency, Owner Occupied Required
- 2. No grand-fathering or amnesty for existing STRs and de facto "hotels"
- 3. No Rent Stabilized (RSO properties) should be permitted to operate as a STR
- 4. Mello Act Provisions must be strictly adhered to

¹ Roy Samaan,LAANE Policy Brief: Short--Term Rentals and Los Angeles' Lost Housing, July, 2014, supplement to "Airbnb, Rising Rent, and the Housing Crisis in Los Angeles," (LAANE, 2014)

- 5. No conversions to "legal hotels" or "corporate housing" of residentially zoned, rent stabilized apartment buildings and multi-unit properties
- 6. Neighborhood specific density caps
- 7. Posting of STR contact information
- 8. Parking for STR occupants
- 9. STRs must comply with applicable noise ordinances
- 10. Health and Safety Regulations
- 11. Eviction and remedies available to Home-Sharers
- 12. Protection of Home-Sharing service workers
- 13. A New STR Coordinating Department should be created within the City to Unify STR Permitting, Collection of Fees (including TOT) and Enforcement of STRs
- 14. An STR permit should be required for the operation of an STR
- 15. A Home-Sharing/STR Enforcement Unit should be created
- 16. Owners and/or Third-Party Service Agents of all STR units to be offered for rental must report monthly
- 17. STRs listed for rental shall include their Permit Number in advertisements
- 18. Fines for operating an STR without a permit, non-payment of STR TOT and non-reporting
- 19. Tiered Performance Standards

Attachment to VNC Motion regarding City Council Motion 14-1635-S2

Suggestions from the Venice Neighborhood Council on Regulating Short Term Rentals

1. <u>Must Be Primary Residency, Owner Occupied Required</u> Absolutely no investment property owners or owners with 2nd (and 3rd and 4th) "homes." Many STRs are currently commercial operations with multiple units offered for rent, often in separate structures. These STRs frequently resemble hotels rather than residential properties.

Most of these commercial operators currently claim to be "hosts" and to live on their properties. However, the majority of these commercial operators do not live on the property, or live there only a few days out of the year. Many operate multiple short-term rentals as a commercial enterprise and falsely claim "guests" are family members or friends. Regulations designed to end this practice must be incorporated into the motion to insure that no loophole allowing this practice to continue is created.

- 2. No grand-fathering or amnesty for existing STRs and de facto "hotels" Existing STR's should not be granted amnesty. Rather they should be required to begin an application process and required to register with the City under any new ordinance(s) or regulations to insure that current operators of STRs are barred from continuing operation. No commercial operators should be permitted.
- 3. <u>No Rent Stabilized (RSO properties) should be permitted to operate as an STR</u> City Council must clarify how this will be accomplished and how to ensure that RSO units are not converted to short-term rentals. One solution would be to enact the proposed Rent Registry, which would record occupancy and rental amount on every RSO unit, as a matter of course, on an annual basis. This will give city departments the data necessary to evaluate if a unit has been illegally converted from RSO.
- 4. <u>Mello Act Provisions must be strictly adhered to</u> Special Coastal Zone provisions in any new short-term rental regulations should implement the protections of the Mello Act. The three Coastal Zone neighborhoods within the City (Venice, San Pedro, and Pacific Palisades) warrant special attention, and possibly an exemption from this ordinance in favor of stricter rules. The Mello Act, a state law, expressly prohibits the conversion of residential housing to non-residential uses in most circumstances. An RSO building owner currently operating an illegal hotel (which we have many of in Venice) cannot be granted the required zoning changes, permits or certificates of occupancy to convert their operation to a legal hotel, because the Department of City Planning would be compelled by the Mello Act to deny these requests. Currently, many operators of STRs are operating without the required zoning, certificates of occupancy, or permits to operate a commercial hotel. Therefore, in the Coastal Zone especially (and throughout the City, as a matter of good public policy), the Council should first address how to bring all residential properties into compliance with applicable laws and rules, including the Mello Act. Secondly, the City should address if and how a property owner could operate an STR legally. If no measures can be found, we have no choice but to ban STR's in the Coastal Zone, in accordance with State Law and in the interest of protecting our neighborhoods and residential housing stock.
- 5. <u>No conversions to "legal hotels" or "corporate housing" of residentially zoned, rent stabilized apartment</u> <u>buildings and multi-unit properties</u> This is a violation of the Mello Act and removes long-term affordable and rent stabilized housing from the long-term rental stock.
- 6. <u>Neighborhood specific density caps</u> In order to protect quality of life, neighborhood stability and neighborhood diversity, the burden of STRs must be shared fairly by all residential neighborhoods. Limits must be placed on the number and concentration of STRs in any given residential neighborhood.
- Posting of STR contact information A sign with the name, phone number, email address and mailing address of an emergency contact (who shall be available 24/7) shall be posted in a public viewable location on the STR's premises whenever the STR is occupied.
- 8. <u>Parking for STR occupants</u> STRs shall supply parking spaces in accordance with standards set by the City Council and other regulatory agencies (such as the California Coastal Commission).

- STRs must comply with applicable noise ordinances STR contracts must inform STR renters of applicable noise ordinances. Fines for excessive noise shall be levied to insure compliance. Noise complaints shall be tracked and repeated complaints shall be grounds for revoking an STR Permit.
- 10. <u>Health and Safety Regulations</u> The City shall establish health and safety regulations as are necessary to protect Renters of STRs
- 11. <u>Eviction and remedies available to Home-Sharers</u> The City shall establish regulations as necessary to protect home-sharers from renters. Such protections shall include a right of eviction for non-payment of fees and property damage claims.
- 12. <u>Protection of Home-Sharing service workers</u> The City shall establish regulations as necessary to protect the health and safety of STR service workers.
- 13. <u>A New STR Coordinating Department should be created within the City to Unify STR Permitting, Collection of Fees (including TOT) and Enforcement of STRs</u> This department would be responsible for notifying neighbors within 100 feet of any proposed short-term rental and neighbors would be allowed to testify at a public hearing.
- 14. <u>An STR permit should be required for the operation of an STR</u> Permits would be issued by the new STR Coordinating Department to properties that qualify under the STR ordinance and to qualified applicants who agree to provide reporting of STR activities, payment of the STR TOT and abide by STR regulations. Permits would not be issued without complete registration information including provision of certificates of insurance, STR address, owner name, contact information, emergency contact information, number of STR units on-site, number of parking spaces available for STR's, etc should be collected as well as any other permitting requirements deemed necessary by the city. The city should consider whether STR Permit applicants should advertise a pending application to their neighbors to allow for comment prior to issuing a permit.

A permitting fee would be collected with the permit application. A permit number to be used in regulatory activities will be issued at the time the permit is issued.

- 15. <u>A Home-Sharing/STR Enforcement Unit should be created within the STR Coordinating Department</u> The Enforcement Unit would house STR enforcement staff who will inspect properties, maintain registration data and regulatory reports, issue fines, investigate complaints and initiate legal action as necessary to insure that the City's STR regulations are complied with. The STR Enforcement Unit should be self-financed by permit fees for new STRs and adding a fee to the TOT that applies to STRs.
- 16. <u>Owners and/or Third-Party Service Agents of all STR units to be offered for rental must report monthly</u> Owners and Internet platforms, agents, realtors and others receiving payments from STR rental activity shall report such activity monthly. They will report the number of occupancies, the dates of each occupancy, the number of renters per unit per occupancy, the names of the occupants, the number of vehicles per unit per occupancy, the rent charged per occupancy, the amount received per occupancy, STR TOT due per occupancy, and any other information required by the STR Coordinating Department. A check for the total STR TOT due for the month must be included with the report.
- 17. <u>STRs listed for rental shall include their Permit Number in advertisements</u> Internet platforms, websites, realtors and other parties advertising STRs for rent should identify the STR in its advertisement with the Permit Number issued to the STR operator. No STR may be listed as available for rent in the City of Los Angeles without a valid Permit Number.
- 18. <u>Fines for operating an STR without a permit, non-payment of STR TOT and non-reporting</u> Fines shall be levied for not reporting as required and / or non-payment of the STR TOT. The fines assessed should be sufficient to deter non-reporting / non-payment and should escalate for continued infractions.
- 19. <u>Tiered Performance Standards</u> A "three-strike" system in which properties that incur ongoing, verifiable complaints will receive escalating penalties and loss of ability to rent as an STR.